
 

                    WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING BOARD 

JANUARY 19, 2016 MINUTES 

 

A regular/work session meeting of the Washington Township Planning 

Board was called to order by Mr. Frattali at 7:08 pm.  The Open Public 

Meetings Act Statement was read, followed by salute to the Flag. 
 

Roll call was taken as follows: 
 

PRESENT:  Mr. Smith, Mrs. Martin, Mr. D’Ariano, Mr. Boyer, Mr. 

McPoyle, Mr. Bidinger, Mr. Sparacio, Mr. Frattali, Mayor Wallace, 

Mr. Dennis and Mr. Centrone 

ABSENT:  none 

PRESENT:  Diana Tutolo, Board Secretary; Timothy Scaffidi, 

Solicitor; Thomas Cundey, Engineer; Rich Fini and Jay Petrongolo, 

Planner  

 

Mr. Scaffidi swore in the Board Professionals. 

 

APPLICATIONS: 

 

1.  Steve Ciemny 

     400 Delsea Drive 

     38/1 & 2 

     Minor Site Plan 

 

Robert Mintz, Esq. represented the applicant.  Mr. Mintz stated that the 

applicant received a site plan waiver in 2013.  One of the conditions of 

that approval was that the applicant obtain a cross access easement 

from lot 8 for ingress and egress from the site. Since then the applicant 

has since gained approval from the County to provide access for 

Hurffville Cross Keys Rd.  Mr. Mintz stated that the applicant is now 

requesting a minor site plan approval with variances and waivers due to 

the changes.   

 

Mr. Petrongolo addressed his 12/7/15 review letter.  Mr. Petrongolo 

stated that the applicant has addressed most of the comments of his 

letter.  He noted that he had no objection to a waiver to allow asphalt 

paving in place of the existing crushed stone.  Mr. Petrongolo stated 



that the applicant agreed to comply with the landscaping and lighting 

requirements of his letter.   

 

Mr. Cundey addressed his 12/8/15 review letter.  Mr. Cundey 

commented that he spoke with Mr. Mintz regarding the installation of 

handicap ramps.  Mr. Cundey asked that the gutters run outside of the 

ramp so that water is not trapped.   Mr. Cundey noted that the ramps 

should be shown on the plans. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. D’Ariano and 2nd by Mr. Boyer to open to 

the public. All in favor.  No one in the public wished to comment. 

A motion was made by Mr. Sparacio and 2nd by Mr. D’Ariano to close 

to the public.  All in favor. 

Mr. Frattali entertained a motion to approve a minor site plan approval 

with variances and waivers for the applicant, Steve Ciemny 

Roll call was taken as follows: 

In favor:  Mr. Smith, Mr. Martin, Mr. D’Ariano, Mr. Boyer, Mr. 

McPoyle, Mr. Bidinger, Mr. Sparacio, Mr. Frattali and Mayor Wallace 

Opposed:  none 

Abstained: none 

Application Approved: (9-0) 

 

2.  Washington Square Urban Renewal, LLC 

      257 Hurffville Cross Keys Rd. 

      115/3 & 3.01 

      Preliminary & Final Major Site Plan & Subdivision 

 

Louis Cappelli, Esq. represented the applicant.  Mr. Cappelli stated that 

the applicant is seeking preliminary and final major site plan approval 

with bulk variances, waivers and a major subdivision approval.  Mr. 

Cappelli presented an overview of the project.  The project is consistent 

with the Washington Square Redevelopment Area dated November 19, 

2007, revised to October 6, 2015 and adopted October 28, 2015. The 

project is subject to the Redevelopment Agreement dated November 

12, 2008, between the applicant, the Township and the Planning Board.  

Mr. Cappelli that the main objective is the creation of a town center, 

the encouragement of an innovative mixed use, the creation of a sense 

of place, the encouragement of a pedestrian friendly environment, the 

creation of a sense of place, the creation of a unique and architecturally 

safe environment.  Mr. Cappelli further noted that these objectives are 



being met because of the hard work performed by the applicant and the 

outstanding talent of applicant’s professionals.  Mr. Cappelli explained 

that this plan was not developed overnight.  It evolved over years of 

meetings between the applicant and the Development Review 

Committee.  Mr. Cappelli commented that the project is not only 

compliant with the Redevelopment Plan but it is a vibrant and exciting 

project. The project will create a new and exciting place to work, live 

and shop in Washington Township.  It will also create construction 

jobs and permanent jobs.  

Mr. Cappelli introduced the applicant’s project team; Steve Santola and 

Scott Fishbone from Washington Square Urban Renewal, Michael 

Sheerin from Rothman, Greg Elmore, architect for the assisted living 

facility, Ted Wilkinson, project engineer, Lance Blake, commercial 

space architect and Richard Arzberger, residential architect.   

Mr. Boyer questioned if this was a work session or a voting meeting.  

Mr. Petrongolo replied that this was the first public meeting for a 

complex application.  Mr. Petrongolo noted that he and Mr. Cundey 

have had thorough conversations with the applicant and the applicant’s 

professionals.  He further noted that it would be unusual to have vote at 

the first meeting for a project of this size. Mr. Petrongolo stated that he 

expects the applicant to come back with revised plans that would 

address the review letters.  Mr. Petrongolo noted that in his January 14, 

2016 review letter he outlined items that the applicant did not submit.  

He stated that the applicant agreed to provide all of the submission 

items.  There will be no submission waivers for this application.  Mr. 

Petrongolo recommended to the Board that the application be deemed 

complete upon the applicant submitting all outstanding items.   Mr. 

Boyer stated that he was hesitant to deem the application complete 

when there is so many things we do not have.  Mr. Cappelli stated that 

it is not unusual for an application this extensive to have some 

outstanding submission items.   

A motion was made by Mrs. Martin and 2nd by Mr. Boyer to deem the 

application complete. 

Roll call was taken as follows: 

In favor:  Mr. Smith, Mrs. Martin, Mr. D’Ariano, Mr. Boyer, Mr. 

McPoyle, Mr. Bidinger, Mr. Sparacio, Mr. Frattali and Mayor Wallace 

Opposed:  none 

Abstained:  none 

Application Deemed Complete:  (9-0) 



Mr. Scaffidi swore in Steven Santola, Esq. He gave an overview of the 

project.  Mr. Santola distributed a booklet of various projects built by 

Woodmont Properties and Atkins Companies.  The booklet consisted 

of residential and commercial properties.  Mr. Santola noted that these 

companies are specialists in multi-family and mixed- use 

developments.  Mr. Santola discussed how the residential use and the 

commercial use interconnect.  Mr. Santola discussed how around the 

retail areas they would create outdoor spaces.  He stated that the 

residential units would be luxury units.  

Luxury units in that they will include generous common areas, large 

bathrooms, walk-in closets, quartz countertops, 2 bathrooms in all two 

bedroom units and stainless steel appliances.  He further stated that 

there would be an inground pool, a party deck, a clubhouse and a 

fitness center.  The clubhouse will include a park out front. Mr. Santola 

noted that the Affordable Housing units are to be clustered.  The 

affordable housing residents will share in all of the amenities.  You will 

not see a difference between all of the homes.  Mr. Cappelli asked Mr. 

Santola to discuss the demographics of residents they want to attract to 

the site.  Mr. Santola testified that they are not marketing families.  The 

affordable housing units will generate school age children.  This 

project is assisting the Township in meeting its requirement for 

affordable housing.  Mr. Santola noted that they always market to an 

upscale market for the two bedroom apartments.  He further noted that 

the clubhouse is used by 99 ½ % by the residents.  Residents come to 

the clubhouse for parties, their mail or the fitness center.    

Mr. Cappelli marked example of Woodmont Properties as Exhibit W1 

and a site plan layout as Exhibit W2. 

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Michael Sheerin, Senior Vice President of the 

Rothman Institute.  Mr. Sheerin testified that he is in charge of 22 

locations for the Rothman Institute. Mr. Sheerin stated that the 

Rothman Institute is a full service, private practice with 130 surgeons 

and 800 employees.  He noted that this year Rothman Institute was 

recognized as the most influential group in the country for joint 

replacement.  They are the team physicians for all four major sport 

teams. They also run the residency program for Rowan University. The 

practice has grown to the point where they cannot accommodate all of 

their patients. Mr. Sheerin appealed to the Board to expedite the 

redevelopment of their office. 

 



Mr. Scaffidi swore in Greg Elmore of Lenity Architecture.  Mr. Elmore 

gave an overview of the proposed assisted living facility.  The proposal 

is for 113 units which would consists of 35 memory care units on the 

first floor and the remainder of the units for assissted living on the 

second and third floors.  Mr. Elmore noted that the project would 

consists of a few private units. Mayor Wallace asked how many would 

be Medicaid beds.  Mr. Elmore testified that the demographics for this 

area do not warrant Medicaid beds. Mr. Elmore discussed the benefits 

for being part of a mixed-use project.  Mr. Elmore stated that this is an 

ideal location for them.   

A rendering of the assisted living facility was marked as Exhibit W3. 

 

The Board recessed at 8:32 pm and returned at 8:48 pm. 

 

Mr. Elmore clarified the number of units for the assisted living facility 

as 78 for assisted living and 35 for memory care.   

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Ted Wilkinson, the project engineer. Mr. 

Wilkinson testified that the applicant has every intention to further 

extend into Baldwin Parkway. Along the boulevard, the applicant will 

install decorative sidewalks with red brick coping.  Mr. Wilkinson 

noted that at the front of the site, they were able to save 60 ft. of green 

space.  With regard to storm drainage, two retention ponds will have to 

be constructed.  Mr. Frattali asked what type of fencing is going to go 

around the basins.  Mr. Wilkinson replied that they would use a 4 ft. 

decorative fence.  Mr. Frattali stated that at the DRC meeting he 

brought up his safety concern for the 10 ft. wall.  Mr. Wilkinson stated 

that it was still an open issue.  He further stated that he would meet 

with the Board’s Planner and Engineer to come up with an alternative 

plan. Mr. Boyer asked if there would be a traffic light on Hurffville 

Cross Keys Rd.  Mr. Wilkinson stated the traffic light is still an open 

issue. Mayor Wallace asked about the location of the dog runs.  Mr. 

Wilkinson indicated the locations on the site plan.  Mr. Petrongolo 

asked if rain gardens would be incorporated on the plans.  Mr. 

Wilkinson replied that he would make the recommendation to the 

applicant.   

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Lance Blake, commercial architect for the 

project.  Mr. Blake gave an overview of his work on the Rothman 

Institute and the retail component for the project.  The exterior view of 

the retail building was marked as Exhibit W4.  Mr. Blake referenced a 

set of plans dated 11/5/15, which were submitted to the Board.  The 



Rothman building will have two floors. The Rothman Institute will 

take the 2nd floor, the ground floor will be used other medical uses. An 

exterior view of the Rothman building was marked as W5.  Mr. Blake 

noted that the building would have a generous lobby, a portico for 

patients to dropped off or drive under or be dropped off.  Mr. Blake 

stated the height of the building would be 28 ft. high. A 42 ft. 

architectural feature will frame the front entrance.  The two retail 

buildings are each 10,000 sq. ft.  Mr. Blake noted that they took a lot of 

care with the layout and detail of the façade.  He added that they used a 

darker, more reddish brown brick.  Mr. Blake testified that the space 

between the two retail buildings would have a gathering space with 

tables and chairs.  A rendering of the proposed signage for the project 

was marked as Exhibit W6.  Mr. Petrongolo stated that he has not had 

an opportunity to review the signage for the project.  He added that 

more information was necessary for the review.  Mr. Boyer felt the 

colors used for the medical building and the retail buildings might 

clash.  He added that he liked the design, but was concerned about the 

color choices. Mr. Dennis agreed with Mr. Boyer.  Mr. Blake replied 

that they do not want the buildings to match.  Mr. Boyer stated that it 

seems that they have three different basic colors between the medical, 

the retail and the signage.  Mr. Petrongolo commented that one of the 

requirements of the Redevelopment Plan is that the architectural 

standards should work together. He further commented that the 

Rothman building is a beige that is different from the beige used for the 

retail buildings.  They should be harmonious.  Mr. Dennis agreed and 

felt that the Rothman building fits in more with the Virtua building.  

Mrs. Martin stated that if the signage were going to be done at another 

time, the redevelopers would make it so it matches.  Mr. Santola stated 

that they would either do signage at the next meeting or do signage in a 

separate application.  Mr. Santola added that they do want feel 

compelled to make the buildings look different.  

Mr. Fini noted that LEED architectural standards are strongly 

recommended.  Mr. Blake testified that they would comply.  He 

explained what standards he has incorporated into his design.   

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Richard Arzberger, architect for the residential 

portion of the project.  He gave an overview of the residential 

component of the project.  Two of the buildings are affordable housing 

units, which are three stories.  There will also be a three-story building 

for market apartments.  The units will be one and two bedroom 

apartments.  The apartment buildings will be four stories high with a 



loft in the fourth floor units.  Mr. Arzberger described the building 

design and the construction materials used.  He noted that there is 

requirement for the affordable housing units to have some three-

bedroom units.  Mayor Wallace questioned whether the loft counts as 

bedroom space.  Mr. Arzberger replied that it is considered open space 

to the living area below.  Mr. Arzberger added that there is no closets 

or bathroom on the fourth floor.  Mr. Petrongolo stated that if the 

height of the loft area were higher than 50 ft., it would not be 

permitted.  Mr. Arzberger testified that they would address this.   

Mayor Wallace asked if the Fire Marshall reviewed the site plan.  Mr. 

Wilkinson replied that they have received the Fire Marshall’s review 

letter and they will address his concerns.  He added that Fire Marshall’s 

main concern was bringing a ladder truck back to the four story 

buildings.  Mayor Wallace asked about trash pickup and trash removal 

for the site.  Mr. Wilkinson testified that with the next submission they 

would have details of the trash enclosures. Mr. Fini asked how the 

trash would be handled for the assisted living facility and the 

townhomes.  Mr. Elmore replied that the townhomes would have 

curbside service.  He added that as to medical waste, they would have 

dispensers to be collected weekly.   

A rendering of the apartments was marked as W7 and the clubhouse 

floor was marked as W8.    

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Nathan Mosley, the project traffic engineer.  Mr. 

Mosley reviewed access and traffic patterns for the site.  Mr. Mosley 

noted that a Traffic Assessment was prepared.  Mr. Mosley stated that 

because of having various uses, you would see different types of trips 

than normally seen with just a general retail space.  There will be 

internal trips between the different uses on the site.  Mr. Mosley 

commented that this plan meets the objectives of a pedestrian friendly 

site.  He added that sidewalks have been provided throughout the site 

to encourage pedestrian activity between the various uses.   Mr. 

Cundey stated that since the boulevard is the main road, future 

development should be taken into account. Mr. Mosley stated that 

plans could be adjusted for additional traffic.  Mr. Cundey stated that 

as far as shared parking, he felt that there needs to be more connectivity 

between the parking lots.  Mayor Wallace asked if the police 

department have any input.  Mr. Petrongolo replied that the township 

does not have any say on this matter, as it is a County road.  Mr. 

Petrongolo noted that our emergency personnel would ensure that the 

site is safe.  Mr. Boyer asked Mr. Petrongolo for more information on 



the connection through to Baldwin Blvd. Mr. Petrongolo explained that 

the Redevelopment Plan shows along Hurffville Cross Keys Rd. two 

main entrances that would tie into the internal circulation within the 

redevelopment area.  He added that the plan also shows a connection to 

Fries Mill Rd., the bypass and to Baldwin, which would then lead you 

out to American Blvd.  The connection to Baldwin is not far from the 

rear portion of the site. The applicant does not own the parcel but they 

have been in discussions with the owner to connect.  Mr. Cundey 

added that the County is very interested in second access.   

As far as scheduling the next meeting, Mr. Scaffidi noted that the 

Board’s next meeting is February 2nd, which does not allow much time.  

The applicant decided to return for the February 16th meeting.  Mr. 

Scaffidi noted the time and date of the meeting on the record, which 

serves as the official notice.   

 

A motion was made by Mrs. Martin and 2nd by Mr. Boyer to open the 

meeting to the public.   All in favor. 

Mr. Scaffidi swore in Vicky Binetti, Vice Chairperson of the 

Environmental Commission.  Mrs. Binetti stated that she did not feel 

that the dog runs were well positioned.  She added that waste would 

run into the basins.  Mr. Santola explained that at all of their 

communities, dogs are policed or you are asked to leave.  Mr. Santola 

testified that they would look into it.   

A motion was made by Mr. D’Ariano and 2nd by Mr. Boyer to close to 

the public. All in favor.   

 

RESOLUTIONS: 

 

RES. #2016-01 A RESOLUTION OF THE WASHINGTON 

TOWNSHIP PLANNING BOARD GRANTING A MINOR SITE 

PLAN APPROVAL TO THE APPLICANT, STRONG TOWER 

RESOURCES CENTER (REDEEMED CHRISTIAN CHURCH 

OF GOD) 

A motion was made by Mr. Sparacio and 2nd by Mr. Bidinger 

Roll call was taken as follows: 

In favor:  Mr. Smith, Mrs. Martin, Mr. Boyer, Mr. McPoyle, Mr. 

Bidinger, Mr. Sparacio, Mr. Frattali, Mayor Wallace and Mr. Dennis 

Opposed:  none 

Abstained:  Mr. D’Ariano and Mr. Centrone  

Res. #2016-01 Approved: (9-0) 



 

MINUTES: 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Sparacio and 2nd by Mr. McPoyle to 

approve the minutes of November 15, 2015.  All eligible members 

voted in favor of the minutes of November 15, 2015. 

 

Open Meeting to the Public: 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Boyer and 2nd by Mr. D’Ariano to open the 

meeting to the public. All in favor. No one in the public wished to 

comment. 

 

Close Meeting to the Public: 

 

A motion was made by Mr. D’Ariano and 2nd by Mr. Boyer to close the 

meeting to the public. All in favor. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Sparacio and 2nd by Mayor Wallace to 

adjourn the meeting.  All in favor. The meeting adjourned at 10:16 pm. 
 

These minutes are a brief summary of the proceedings that took place 

during the Washington Planning Board meeting held January 19, 2016 

and should not be taken as verbatim testimony.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
Diana Tutolo 

Planning Board Secretary 

 

Cc:  Mayor 

       Business Administrator 

       Township Clerk 

       Council 

       Director of Community Development 

       Tax Assessor 



       File 

        
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


